
1

Minutes of the Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting
Held in the Caucus Room of the Municipal Building, 36080 Chester Road,

at 7:00 P.M. on Thursday, September 8, 2016

Chairman Tom Mitchell called the meeting to order

ROLL CALL:

Other members in attendance were: Jim Schmitz, John Weigman - School Board Representative;
Mary Berges - Council Representative; Lee Belardo and Cady Cianciolo

CITY LIAISON:
Diane Corrao, Parks & Recreation Director

ABSENT:

One Vacancy
– Mr. Weigman inquired if anything was being done about replacing the member who

moved out of the City. Mr. Mitchell commented that appointment comes from the Mayor’s
recommendation to City Council. Mr. Weigman inquired as to who starts that process or if the
Mayor was even aware of the vacancy. Mr. Mitchell stated the process has not come from this
Board in the past and the new appointment just begins attending the meetings of this Board. Ms.
Berges stated the Mayor is aware because he brought it up to her and it may be a question of if
he has found someone who is interested in serving. Mr. Mitchell knew Commission Members
have offered recommendations to the Mayor, in the past, if they knew of someone who was
interested and would be a good candidate.

August 11, 2016 MINUTES:
Mr. Weigman stated he would like to suggest a correction under Marketing and subcategory
Newspaper as it was not him who said he would contact Ms. Hennessey at The Press. Mr.
Belardo stated he believed that was him who said he would speak to The Press.

A motion was made by Mr. Schmitz and seconded by Mr. Weigman to approve the minutes, as
amended, of the August 11, 2016 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission and the vote
was unanimous in favor and Mr. Mitchell declared the motion passed.

OLD BUSINESS:

SURVEY   REVIEW:   Mr. Mitchell said he put together the framework for the survey in
much the similar format that it was the last time and he thought they would just go through it
although he does not have all the items discussed in past meetings applied. But, the Board could
see how it works and from a flow perspective make sure it is easy to understand. We could see if
there are any other creative options available that we may or may not choose to apply. For
example, you can now make the survey questions and answers in random order instead of the



2

order in which they were put. He asked the group to keep that in mind while going over the
survey itself. The objective is to try to avoid bias. 

Mr. Weigman said looking forward we will have to enter the rest of the questions and he
inquired as to if a rough timeline was known to be able to enter all the text.

Mr. Mitchell said it would not take long as it was not that far from being complete.
Mr. Weigman asked if Mr. Mitchell could email out the link to them within 2 weeks or

sooner so they can test it at home.
Mr. Mitchell said that should be very doable. Since we have the ability to erase answers

he would just have them all go through it and complete the survey to see if there are any
suggestions for improvement. The biggest thing they were trying to avoid is they do not want
people to not understand the question. The target date to email the link to the rest of the Board
was September 22nd.

Mr. Weigman suggested the Commission not only take the survey themselves so we have
answers, but also look at the questions as they go through it and make certain typographical
errors were caught and anything that follows the format we are looking for. He inquired if
anyone still had the old survey. 

Mr. Mitchell said he has one hard copy as they could not find an electronic copy still
available. He said he would make copies of the original for anyone who would like one. Mr.
Mitchell said it indicates the results and the second tab is where you will find the actual
questions. 

Mr. Weigman said they could use it for comparison.
Mr. Mitchell stated we will create a hard copy version of this new survey for the file. He

said we can add logos and possibly match the City website. We talked about putting a link on the
City website and we talked about adding something to the utility bills and The Press. Mr.
Mitchell pulled the survey up for the Commission to see how it will look. He added that they can
set the survey to force the responder to answer a specific question or not.

Ms. Cianciolo inquired as to how it was done the last time.
Mr. Weigman felt the survey did not require you to answer every question the last time as

the percentages were different throughout. 
Mr. Mitchell felt they should make the first question required to be answered. Several

Commission members were in agreement.
Mr. Weigman said we assume those filling out the survey are residents because we do not

ask if they are a resident as there was no way to validate it anyway. Mr. Schmitz suggested we
ask if they are a resident as he felt it was just as important or more important. The Commission
felt only those who live in Avon would be interested in filling out the survey.

The discussion included which questions should be required and which were optional.
Ms. Cianciolo said the Commission needed to determine how pertinent that component of

the survey is for their interpretation of the results.
Mr. Belardo inquired as to what happens if someone does not answer required questions.

Mr. Mitchell confirmed the person taking the survey would not be able to submit the survey
without completing the required fields.

Mr. Weigman stated the last time almost 90% of the respondents were between 25 and 54
years old. That age group and their children are probably the larger users of the parks. Mr.
Weigman said of the people who responded to the survey the last time only 3% were seniors 65
and above. Mr. Weigman inquired as to how we target the senior citizens better for something
like this survey. Ms. Corrao felt the Senior Center is doing a nice job engaging the seniors now.



3

Mr. Weigman felt with all the retirement housing in Avon he does not believe a large percentage
of them attend the Senior Center. Ms. Corrao stated if they were not the part of the community
who uses the parks and other recreational opportunities that possibly it would not be necessary to
seek them out for the survey. Mr. Weigman agreed we want the feedback from those who are
using the parks and are interested in using the recreational facilities available in Avon. 

It was decided the first two questions would be required and the remaining were optional.
It was noted that only if the answer to #4 was “Yes” did that need to answer #5.
Mr. Weigman felt question #5 needed to allow for multiple answers. Ms. Corrao

suggested “check all that apply” for question #5 as some families have more than one age group
represented. 

Mr. Mitchell suggested the Commission Members take notes while taking the survey and
bring their input back for future discussion.

Ms. Cianciolo inquired if there was a character limitation on the survey for the
responders. It was not known. Mr. Weigman stated it did not seem to be an issue the last time.

Ms. Corrao inquired if under the list of parks the Avon Isle should be listed as Avon
Isle/Gazebo/Heritage Square. It was noted, the Gazebo/Heritage Square would be kept separate
as it was a separate “park”. Mr. Schmitz felt the Aquatic Facility should be listed first. 

Mr. Weigman stated from the old survey there is another free form text question he
would like added: Up to 3 areas where you would like to see funds allocated for either programs
or capital. Mr. Weigman felt that correlated pretty high with the other answers of what people
thought we needed. He noted back then a swimming pool was the highest answer.

Ms. Corrao stated she is starting to waffle about asking about the property by All Pro
Freight Stadium. She said the reason is that when you first pull in that big grassy area, that was
the area the City is hoping people will develop. Ms. Corrao said across the street from that area is
where originally there were plans for baseball fields or soccer fields or a possible dog park
etcetera. She inquired if we should add a question inquiring what people would like to see on
some of the vacant land in that area. 

Mr. Weigman inquired if that property was no longer specified for ball fields. He
inquired if that has changed.

Ms. Corrao said there is not a specific plan as such, but as the City grows and different
athletics grow she wondered if artificial turf fields should be considered. She asked if they
should add something asking about the next area that could possibly be a major development.
Ms. Corrao said all of our parks are pretty much developed out and there is not a whole lot more
that can be done with them. Mr. Weigman suggested a separate question about that area. Ms.
Corrao agreed. Mr. Weigman suggested, “How would you like that acreage developed, in terms
of parks and recreation?” Ms. Corrao felt it should be something along those lines. Ms. Corrao
suggested, “What kind of park amenities would you like to see when the property at French
Creek Park by the YMCA and the Crusher’s Stadium is developed?” It was noted, this could lead
to the next big brainstorm. Mr. Weigman inquired if there was a time frame for any proposed
development. Ms. Corrao said not at this point. 

Mr. Mitchell stated they just passed their 10 question limit as people become
disinterested. Ms. Berges said there were other questions they discussed adding, but wanted to
keep the survey at 10 questions maximum. Mr. Mitchell said we have, “List up to 3 areas where
you would like to see funds allocated in the parks and recreation program.” and we have “Please
provide any other comments”. Mr. Weigman said we should have that last one mentioned at the
end of the survey as the last time 350 people gave feedback on that.



4

Mr. Mitchell said he needs to go through his notes to see what else he might have missed.
Ms. Berges said she remembered verbiage discussed was, “What other programs, that are
currently not available, would you like to see offered?” Ms. Berges stated when they talked
about this previously we discussed some of the programs that are offered in Avon as we do not
want to replicate programs that are already available to residents. Ms. Cianciolo stated that
makes 11 questions and we still have to add the “any other comments” question at the end. Mr.
Weigman felt that was fine and people could skip the non-required questions if they have no
interest. Ms. Berges agreed and felt it was not a long survey. Mr. Weigman requested those
present time themselves when they take the survey so they have an idea as to how much time it
takes to complete. Ms. Corrao stated she could not imagine anything under 12-15 questions
would be a problem, as she felt 8 questions was too short for a survey. Mr. Weigman agreed and
felt it should only take 4-6 minutes to complete. Mr. Mitchell said #10 was really about where
they want to see money spent and #11 was really about programs people would like to see
offered. Mr. Weigman added that #12 could be “Please provide any other comments”. The
Commission felt that was a good compilation of questions. Mr. Schmitz felt they made some
improvements from the last survey.

Ms. Berges inquired if there was any value in knowing how many children in each family
were in each age group referring to question #5. Mr. Weigman said that was discussed the last
time and they opted not to pin it down to that level. Mr. Mitchell said the question is what do
they do with the information received from the survey and he felt the key objective is to get a
sense of how are people responding that have older kids, very young kids and those with no kids
in the home. Mr. Weigman said analytically he does not think they pulled it apart at that level the
last time, although maybe the tools are more advanced now. Ms. Berges felt that kind of
information would be useful. Mr. Weigman said last survey there was a big data influx of 1200
answers across 10 columns so it was not real easy to manipulate, although maybe the analysis
tools are better now. Mr. Mitchell said it was good if there was a really strong comment about an
issue they could at least get an idea of what the demographic was of the person commenting. Mr.
Weigman said in Excel they could see the age group, but it was very manual although they could
pick out extreme comments. 

Ms. Cianciolo inquired if they could switch the question order or was Survey Monkey
going to send them out randomly. She wondered if French Creek Park question #9 should be
switched with #10 for a better order. The Commission agreed and those question numbers were
reordered. 

Mr. Belardo inquired when someone makes a comment in question #8 even though it is
random, the answers would be associated with each park listed. Mr. Mitchell said yes, they
would make certain of that case although he was almost 100% certain it is already the case. Mr.
Weigman suggested when the Commission takes the survey that they enter the park name in their
answer and then they could check it when doing test surveys. 

Mr. Mitchell said he would send out the test survey to the Commission members and they
could share it and receive feedback on any improvements before it goes live.

BIKE PATH DISCUSSION:
The Commission welcomed guest speaker Mr. Darkow, a cyclist. Mr. Darkow said he

still rides ten miles a day whenever possible, although that is not as much as he used to ride. He
has ridden in all 48 contiguous states and he started as a child riding 2 miles and back to and
from school each day. When he was 48 years old his son suggested they ride to North Carolina



5

where a family member was going to attend a university. He said it is becoming increasingly
difficult to cycle in Avon. He was just through Schwartz Road Park the other day and he could
hardly get through it. Mr. Darkow indicated limestone was put down of a larger stone than what
is used in driveways and he cannot cycle on it even though he has a 3-wheeler as the back wheel
just spins and kicks up the stones. His recommendation would be to asphalt the stoned area.
When he moved here from the Akron area in 1997 or 1998, he was told there was going to be
bike paths installed throughout the City and it never happened. If you go down SR 83 north of
the greenhouse park (Miller Road Nature Preserve) there is a path at the end of one street that is
asphalt and it goes all the way toward the school, but in the other direction after a short distance
it turns to a dirt path. Ms. Corrao said the path will connect eventually over to Schwartz Road
Park, but as far as streets there was not room, unfortunately, for bike lanes. Mr. Darkow said at
the curve of Jaycox Road where it meets Schwartz Road, there is room. He felt there was room
whether they wanted to take it all the way to the 3-way stop and go past the old fire station or do
it on what used to be the fire station side. Mr. Darkow felt there is room to do it and he said he
does not like to ride on a sidewalk as the sidewalks are not level in all areas. Mr. Schmitz
inquired if he was talking about on the west side of Jaycox Road where there are no houses from
the Schwartz Road curve until you come to Reigelsberger Road. Mr. Darkow said there is room
at the curve and if they have to take up the sidewalk to do then, take up the sidewalk and it needs
to be at least 3 feet wide. Mr. Mitchell inquired if the reason Mr. Darkow was bringing up that
one area was because it is a dangerous spot. Mr. Darkow said no, it is because if you want to go
from Miller Park to Swartz Park on a cycle that is the only way he could see that it could be
done. He said he used to ride from his house on Jaycox Road to McDonald’s at I-90 every
morning in Avon. Mr. Weigman said there is a lot of traffic going through there to which Mr.
Darkow responded there was not at that time and traffic never bothered him. Mr. Darkow said
they installed a bike lane across the new bridge on SR 611, but inquired as to what good is it. He
said if they extended the bike lane to the baseball field and the YMCA that would be great. From
his house, he rides through the Senior Center parking lot and through the neighboring housing
allotment and he comes out pretty close to that area. 

Mr. Darkow said that bicycling is a hobby and it is exercise and he has been a member of
a group of cyclists called Team ROMEO (Retired Old Men Eating Out) since it was founded in
2004 and it began in the Akron area. He said that being a member of this group is how he was
able to ride in all 48 states. Mr. Darkow said he would take two weeks of vacation in the summer
and they would take a motor home and they traveled and cycled 14 days.

Mr. Schmitz said if you go south on Jaycox and when you get to the end of Jaycox you
turn to the right on Schwartz and head out toward Jaycox again, there is a 4’ asphalt
bike/walking trail. Mr. Belardo said there is a path where you enter into Summer Hill Drive. Mr.
Schmitz said that is the area he is talking about. Mr. Darkow said there is a path that goes from
Jaycox to Nagel Road. Mr. Schmitz felt that path is ideal for bicycles and walking and he
inquired if there were people who walk on that path or if there would be any problem with the
walkers and cyclists sharing that path. Mr. Darkow said he rides in the street. Mr. Schmitz
inquired if it would not be classified as a bike trail. Mr. Weigman answered no and said that
Highland Park and Camelot Way have improved asphalt trails were installed intentionally to lace
the City together to give some of that walking and biking opportunities. Mr. Schmitz said if you
use the whole trails then you would have a pretty good riding trail. Mr. Weigman agreed and said
it just does not connect all of Avon, but some parts of some developments. Mr. Schmitz said
what he is trying to see is if it would be ideally suited for both bikes and walking. Mr. Darkow



6

said that same type of asphalt is on Detroit Road east of the Commons on the north side of the
road. Ms. Corrao and Ms. Berges said that is part of Avenbury. Mr. Darkow said it only goes so
far so he takes Jaycox and cuts through the housing allotment and through the school parking lot
to get to Detroit Road and make that little “s” turn to get into the Commons. 

Mr. Mitchell inquired if Mr. Darkow as aware of the City’s Master Plan for paths and
trails. Mr. Darkow said no. Mr. Mitchell said it is a plan that has been around for a long time.
Mr. Darkow said he was told when he built his house that trails were going to be installed and he
attended a couple of Council Meetings and asked about it and he got nowhere. Mr. Mitchell said
the City planners have laid out where they think these trails should be located to connect schools
and parks and other keys areas of the City. Mr. Mitchell stated as those areas are improved or
developed or various things begin to happen in an area, the City tries to work with the developers
to improve that area in such a way that it matches the Master Plan. 

Ms. Corrao agreed and said she felt it was important to clarify that this Master Plan of
trails is for connectivity to be able to get from place to place without having to drive. She said it
is not necessarily for cycling, in the same way that biking in a road would be. Ms. Corrao said
that she also rides with a group and would never ride on a trail or sidewalks…we ride on the
road. Some roads obviously are better than others and some have nice berms and some have
none and some have bike lanes. Ms. Corrao felt the type of cycling that Mr. Darkow is talking
about she does not think that the Master Trail connectivity is necessarily for that purpose because
some of that connectivity is sidewalks. It is really for people to get from one point of the City to
another, without a car, but not necessarily on a road bike. Mr. Mitchell agreed and said that made
sense and while it might be suitable for a child on his bike, it might not be suitable for cyclists.
Ms. Corrao said as far as cycling, in the manner she does and that Mr. Darkow described,
unfortunately she did not know if we will ever have in the City. Ms. Corrao advised the City is
still going to try to put in some more multi-purpose trails to connect to different areas and would
continuously be looked at and modified and strived for improvement. Ms. Corrao said every
location is not going to have that asphalt path that would be conducive to cycling. She said there
is a big difference from being able to get to point A to point B throughout the City and cycling.
Mr. Schmitz said in Amherst off of W. Ridge Rd. there is a trail that runs along the train tracks.
Mr. Darkow said there is one that goes from Elyria to Kipton. Mr. Schmitz said that trail is for
cycling. Ms. Corrao clarified it is multi-purpose and when you get road cyclists on it, it can be
challenging. Ms. Corrao said she rides on that trail, but she is not flying and she has been passed
by others going much faster. Mr. Schmitz felt it must be very difficult then to have a multi-use
path. Ms. Corrao said if it is a good multi-use path people just have to be respectful. She added
when you go to the Metroparks in Rocky River they have a fabulous trail but there are people
going very fast and some other cyclists are not on that trail, but rather are on the road. Discussion
included other trails in the area in surrounding cities and most were multi-use trails. 

Mr. Mitchell said it sounded like multi-purpose paths and trails are useful, but they are
pure cyclist trails and his group still uses those and more of those that the City could add in the
future are good. Actual cyclist activity takes place more on the road than not on the road and
anything that the City could do that enables cycling lanes would be welcomed. Mr. Darkow said
there are cycling lanes on Lake Road, which he rode last week, and said he would never ride it
again because there are too many stones in the path area.

Mr. Schmitz thanked Mr. Darkow and appreciated him coming and talking to this
Commission. Mr. Schmitz hoped that once they are ready to get into this kind of project that they
would invite him back and ask for his assistance. Mr. Darkow said he has a map that he has



7

marked where he has ridden in Lorain County. Mr. Mitchell said Mr. Schmitz’s suggestion made
sense and they would certainly be in touch and appreciated Mr. Darkow for coming and speaking
to them that night. The Commission thanked him for coming. Mr. Darkow said cycling, for him,
is fun and relaxing. Mr. Darkow thanked the commission for allowing him to speak and for their
consideration in this matter.

COMMUNITY VOICE:
None

REPORTS:

 COUNCIL    REPRESENTATIVE– Mary Berges said Tuesday night Council voted to
authorize the Mayor to sell the property at Creekside officially to the Lorain County
Metroparks. She said it has been talked about and looked at in the past, but now it is official.
It was noted this was the Matt Garland property previously. The Mayor has the approval and
they are now working out minor details on the sales agreement and then the Metroparks will
take it over. Mr. Weigman inquired as to what the City paid for that property. Ms. Berges
said $2.3 million. Mr. Weigman inquired as to how much the Metroparks were paying the
City for it. Ms. Berges said she believed $850,000. Ms. Corrao said she believed it was an
initial payment of $350,000 and $50,000 a year for the next ten years. Ms. Corrao said the
benefit to the City helping with storm water management and clean water and more…it is a
big win. It was noted, a rough draft was shown to Council of the plans. Ms. Berges said
apparently it is getting some national attention. Mr. Weigman inquired as to the timeframe
for rolling out the planned improvements. Ms. Berges said originally it was thought that it
would take 8-10 years, but now they are saying 2-3 years. Ms. Berges said after the new
year there is going to be several months spent on soil removal. Everyone is very excited and
it will include a walking trail, a deep water habitat, a bridge over French Creek. Mr.
Weigman inquired as to the purpose of the soil removal. Ms. Berges indicated to create a
reservoir of sorts. Ms. Corrao said fish will be able to live there and it would be very big and
is a great plan. Mr. Weigman said historically they have never included Metroparks
members in any of their data. Mr. Mitchell said it has been discussed and each time they
change their minds.

Ms. Berges said regarding an insert in the water bills about the upcoming survey,
the Finance Director asked if it could wait until December because they already have an
insert for November. The Board indicated that should be no problem and Ms. Berges said
she would let Mr. Logan know they could wait until December for the notice to go in the
water bills.

 PARK     DIRECTOR/RECREATION     COORDINATOR– Diane Corrao said the fall
programs were going on and they were still registering for a few. 

 SCHOOL   BOARD   REPRESENTATIVE – John Weigman said schools are back in session
and the buses have been amazing running on time for pickup and drop off. We are thrilled
with how things have started this first week into the school year. After the last Parks and
Rec Meeting he spoke with Superintendent Laub about the survey and he is open to us
putting it in the e-news and sending the link out electronically. Mr. Weigman said Mr. Laub



8

actually brought up something he had not thought of, which is contacting Holy Trinity and
St. Mary’s to see if they were willing to do the same. He said he would reach out to those
schools. 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS:

Mr. Schmitz advised that Sandy Ridge Park in North Ridgeville is similar to what he
believes they are planning for that Avon park. He said he has been there several times and it is a
very nice facility. You can see birds in their natural habitat and there are buildings and trails and
it is a great thing. He felt it would be good for someone from the Avon Parks & Recreation
Commission to go to the meetings of the County Parks & Recreation to see if what we want and
what they want are compatible. It was noted the meetings are probably public and at the very
least any one of them could attend.

Ms. Cianciolo had no further comments.

Mr. Belardo said in light of the guest present he would encourage the City as they
develop future roads to consider wider berms to accommodate cyclists on the roadways. It is
simpler to do as we build out than to build out and realize we want to add bicycling.

Mr. Mitchell had no further comments.

ADJOURN:
A motion was made by Mr. Schmitz and seconded by Ms. Cianciolo to adjourn the September 8,
2016 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission, and the vote was unanimous in favor and
Mr. Mitchell declared the motion passed.

Transcribed by Barbara Brooks, Clerk of Council
City of Avon


